
 
 

  PAAC 10-7-19 Item III 
 

Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 
www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

  
 
Cultural Affairs Division 
Economic & Workforce Development Department 
    

Public Art Advisory Committee 
(PAAC) 

August 5, 2019 
Minutes 

 
Members Present: Bryan Cain (co-chair), Jennifer Correia, Jennifer Kesseler, Charmin Roundtree-

Baaqee*, Eric Murphy  
Excused: Yulia Pinkusevich, Michele Ramirez, Patricia Cariño Valdez, Chris Treggiari 
Absent:   
Staff Present: Kristen Zaremba, Public Art Coordinator; Roberto Bedoya, Cultural Affairs 

Manager* 
Guests:  Phillip Dow, David Soyka, Bruce Tomb, Yoshikawa Wright, Brian Smalley- OKNIA, 

Sohini Chan 
 
Meeting Chair: B. Cain 
*Indicates partial attendance  
 

1. Meeting called to order at 5:36 p.m. 
2. Open Forum 
3. Minutes: J. Correia moved to approve the minutes of the July 1, 2019 Public Art Advisory 

Committee meeting. J. Kesseler seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 
4. Action Item: Review and approve or provide comments on two artworks proposed by Oak 

Knoll Venture Acquisitions, for the Oak Knoll Community located at the former Naval 
Medical Center in Oakland, CA, District 7: A. Vehicle Bridge design by artist Bruce Tomb and 
B. Creekside Entry Park sculptures designed by artist Yoshikawa Wright. Public Art 
Coordinator Kristen Zaremba reintroduced the project. The overview of the project was 
presented at the July 2019 meeting. As the City has determined that two of the five public art 
projects to be realized for this master development will ultimately be on City property, 
therefore requiring PAAC design review. Additionally, City representatives from Economic and 
Workforce Development, Planning and Building, Department of Transportation and Public 
Works will work with the City Attorney to determine the appropriate types of permits and 
maintenance agreements. The development teams, public art consultant Phillip Dow and the 
artists were all invited to make presentations on the two relevant projects. Finally, Zaremba 
noted that the Planning and Building Department have issued preliminary permits for the 
vehicular bridge to allow the project to move forward. Phillip Dow presented the project 
overview and referred PAAC members to the proposals included in the agenda packet. Artist 
Bruce Tomb presented his designs for the Vehicle Bridge, which will span Rifle Range Creek 

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/


 
 

  PAAC 10-7-19 Item III 
 

Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 
www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

and be composed of uncoated cast iron panels attached to the Coreten steel trusses of the 
120-foot-long bridge span. The entire bridge will be assembled and bolted on site. The panels 
are not symmetrical, resulting in different seemingly random endless patterns. From the 
exterior side the visual patterning is more geometric, whereas the interior pattern reflects 
more of a leaf pattern to compliment the surrounding trees. The pattern will also create 
changeable shadow and light patterns on the bridge. The artist team and committee 
members reviewed the artist’s innovative and elegant attachment solution, including a 
template to be provided by the artist to inform on-site installation. The bridge will also be 
illuminated by light posts at either end. Enhanced bridge lighting needs to be clarified. PAAC 
members enthusiastically complimented the artist’s design proposal and the integration with 
the overall bridge design. Staff clarified that the budget does not reflect the entire art 
investment as much of the fabrication budget is covered by the others, representing a model 
of collaboration between designers to enhance the overall project. Once delivered to the site, 
the components will store on site. Maintenance expenses will be covered by either the HOA 
or a district assessment, to be determined, although maintenance may be executed by the 
City via agreement. The bridge components will be fabricated shortly, during the preliminary 
structural installation and soil mitigation, with art installation in the 4th quarter of 2020. 
Motion: C. Roundtree-Baaqee moved to approved the public art designs by Bruce Tomb for 
the Oakland Knoll Vehicle Bridge. J. Correia seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 
Phillip Dow presented the overview for the Creekside Park project and artist selection process 
and panel, which included Oak Knoll Naval Hospital representatives. The selected artist 
Yoshikawa Wright presented a proposal, based on the concept of connection(s), for a series of 
large, human scale abstract granite sculptural benches and tables, inspired by puzzle pieces, 
set within the landscape along Mountain Boulevard. The sculptures will range in size with 
overall dimensions up to The park area will be set within the Geological Hazard Abatement 
District (GHAD). Wright described his process, interviewing the hospital veterans and their 
fond memories of their experience at Oak Knoll, which led to the exploration of connections 
and relationships between puzzles pieces. Community members spoke in favor of the projects 
and complimented the Public Art Advisory Committee meeting. Motion: C. Roundtree Baaqee 
moved to approve the designs by Yoshikawa Wright for Oak Knoll Creekside Park. E. 
Murphy seconded.  

5. Action Item: Review and approve the refined design proposal by artist Deb Koppman for the 
Dimond Branch Library on Fruitvale Avenue. Zaremba presented revised designs for the 
Dimond Branch proposal by Deb Koppman. The artist’s revised designs are based on feedback 
from the PAAC to marry the design more intentionally to the architecture of the building. The 
artist had a meeting conflict and staff agreed to present the design revisions on her behalf. 
Koppman has extensive experience working on painted and mosaic murals. The mural was 
scaled down to create a border of white around the composition. The subject matter has not 
been revised, although the ‘coding’ text will be eliminated. Staff and PAAC members 
discussed the premise for painting a mural on the building. The Friends of the Library, who are 
funding the project, felt the building exterior is underwhelming. Some community members 
feel the mural is not a good fit, indicating some ongoing confusion over what is best for the 
building. PAAC members acknowledged the modified design, including the changes to the 
colors and the border, noting that they still have the same concerns about the mural design 

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/


 
 

  PAAC 10-7-19 Item III 
 

Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 
www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

placement. They suggested the design might be simplified to allow expansion of the 
composition and incorporating some more negative space. Alternatively, applying a horizontal 
mural to the area above the book drops, for example integrating the library signage. PAAC 
members questioned whether the artist would be comfortable changing her approach, noting 
that her other mosaic projects have a different character, where the entire entry or façade is 
treated, creating a more expansive design. They suggested that an expanded budget might 
help the artist to expand her composition but ultimately felt that any mural on the building 
would be problematic. They stated that the mural proposed for the interior passageway feels 
appropriate. Staff will reach out to the Oakland Public Library Director to facilitate. PAAC 
members elected not to vote on the revised designs, due to ongoing concerns about the 
relationship of the exterior facing mural to the building, in relationship to the landscape and 
the façade. Motion Postponed. 

6. Informational Item: OPRYD Gift in Place – Project Backboard design by Alicia McCarthy for 
F.M. Smith Park. Zaremba presented images of the Project Backboard basketball court design 
commission created by Oakland artist Alicia McCarthy for F.M. Smith Park. Similar to the 
Project Backboard project created by artist Muzae Sesay for the previously presented 
Rainbow Recreation Center, the project is considered to be a temporary treatment and was 
realized as a gift in place with Oakland Parks, Recreation and Youth Development. Staff have 
requested that future projects be presented to the Public Art Advisory Committee prior to 
being approved or implemented, regardless of the intended duration of the project. 
Committee members asked if temporary works would be allowed to degrade or if they would 
be painted over after a specified time period. The park is also home to a historical memorial 
to F.M. Smith. Staff requested PAAC feedback on how to prioritize PAAC’s perview with 
regard to artworks realized through other departments. 

7. Informational Item: Cultural Affairs Commission and Public Art Program Legislation.  
Legislation was approved via two readings by City Council in July. The legislation reactivates 
the commission and clarifies the roles and responsibilities of the Public Art Advisory 
Committee. Staff will provide an update on next steps for the Commission and changes to the 
Public Art Advisory Committee responsibilities at the next meeting. The revisions will not 
directly impact monthly operations but do affect the status of the PAAC and set the 
parameters for revision of the program guidelines. 

8. Informational Item: Staff Updates on Pending Projects and Program Activity 
a. MacArthur Gateway Arches. Staff are working on selection of a certified General 

Contractor to install the work and in negotiations with a pre-approved contractor. The 
cost for installation has increased due to the required contracting process, and is being 
supported by additional funds from District 6. Councilmembers are eager for 
completion of the project. 

9. Announcements:   
10. Agenda Building: Updates on current projects.  
11. Adjournment: J. Correia moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:30. J. Kesseler seconded. 

Motion passed unanimously.  

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/


 This meeting is wheelchair accessible.  To request materials in alternative formats, an ASL interpreter, or an assistive listening device, please call the 
Planning Department at 510-238-3941 or TDD 510-238-3254 at least three working days before the meeting.  Please refrain from wearing scented 
products to this meeting so that persons who may experience chemical sensitivities may attend.  Thank you. 

Cultural Affairs Division 
Economic & Workforce Development Department 
    

Public Art Advisory Committee 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, October 7, 2019 
Oakland City Hall 
Hearing Room 4 

1 Frank Ogawa Plaza 
5:30 - 7:30 pm 

 
AGENDA 

 

I. Welcome/Call to Order 

II. Open Forum 

III. Approval of Minutes: August 5, 2019 meeting 

IV. Action Item: Review and provide comments on “Pro Arts @ the commons,” performative 

installation by artist Cassie Thornton, “Desperate Holdings Real Estate & LandMind Spa,” 

proposed for October 21, 23 and 25, 11:00-2:00 pm, on Frank H. Ogawa Plaza. 

V. Informational Item: Cultural Affairs and Public Art Advisory Committee Legislation Update 

VI. Informational Item: Staff Updates on Pending Projects and Program Activity 

a. Measure KK Bond Program: MacArthur Gateway Arches Update 

b. Measure DD: Gardens at Lake Merritt Gates 

c. Mosswood Community Center and Park Master Plan 

d. Public Art in Private Development: Update on Various Projects 

e. Artist-Community Initiated Projects 

VII. PAAC Nominations and Matrix 

VIII. Announcements 

IX. Agenda Building: Outline agenda for November 2019 meeting 

 Next regular meeting: November 7, 2019, Hearing Room 4, Oakland City Hall 

X. Adjourn 

Oakland Cultural Affairs - Public Art Program, 1 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 9th fl. Oakland, CA 94612 www.oaklandculturalarts.org 

http://www.oaklandculturalarts.org/


PAAC 10-7-19 Item IV 

Pro Arts @ the commons 2019 
 
Desperate Holdings Real Estate & LandMind Spa 
October 21, 23, 25, 11:00 am - 2: 00 pm. Frank H. Ogawa Plaza 
 
In 2015 Cassie Thornton, recently displaced from her San Francisco apartment, walked past the 
Salesforce Tower construction site in downtown San Francisco. Construction workers were digging a very 
deep hole, as if to make a stable foundation for Salesforce’s very tall tower, with luxury offices for the 
largest number of private sector workers in the Bay Area. The female construction worker offered Cassie 
and her friend a truckload of the old bay clay that they were digging out from 200 feet below the financial 
district, which they would otherwise send to a toxic dump. The construction workers were digging extra 
deep to insure that this tower would not sink or crack the way the Millenium Tower had, a building which 
the soft and sumptuous San Francisco Bay land had absorbed on its own terms.  
 
Cassie opened Desperate Holdings Real Estate & LandMind Spa, a real estate agency and a spa in 
one that aims to offer clients a chance to get a facial or other spa service using the clay from under the 
Salesforce Tower. By wearing the clay, which contains land value beyond money and outside of 
ownership, you will absorb the ancient organic awareness that the housing market is not the best way of 
determining who gets to have a home and who will die on the street. This project poses the idea that all 
people are living in some kind of isolation in search of a better sense of belonging and home, but that the 
best way to fix that is through finding new ways to interact with land outside of the market. We think that 
getting a deeply ‘local’ facial using this clay may help you face the necessity to develop new personal and 
collective practices for survival, cooperation and co-housing. 
 
 

 



APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITYFILED
OFFICE OF THE CIT V CIUM 

OAKLAND
City Attorney’s Office21119 JUN 13 PM ti: 49

OAKLAND CITY COUNCIL 

ORDINANCE NO. 13 5 6 2 - C.M.S.

ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING THE PERCENT FOR 
PUBLIC ART ORDINANCE NO. 11086 C.M.S. TO CLARIFY THE DUTIES 
MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT OF THE PUBLIC ART ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE AND ITS RELATIONSHIP TO THE CULTURAL AFFAIRS 
COMMISSION, FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE OAKLAND ARTS 
COUNCIL

WHEREAS, in 1980 the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 9969 C.M.S. which established the 
Oakland Arts Council to develop and foster support for the arts and humanities throughout the 
City of Oakland; and

WHEREAS, on February 28, 1989 the Oakland City Council adopted Ordinance No. 11086 
C.M.S., The Percent for Public Art Ordinance, which (1) authorized the allocation of 1.5% of the 
City’s capital improvement projects costs for the commissioning of public art works and artists’ 
services in the construction of public works, (2) established a method for calculating public art 
appropriations of capital projects, (3) established a public art project account, (4) established a 
method of administering the public art program, and (5) established general guidelines for the 
administration of the public art program; and

WHEREAS, the Percent for Public Art Ordinance also established a Public Art Advisory 
Committee as a “professionally qualified citizen committee recommended by the Oakland Arts 
Council and approved by City Council to oversee quality control of the public art program, its 
projects, and to recommend to the Oakland Arts Council the sites, scope of project, artworks 
and artists for the public art projects”; and

WHEREAS, in 1991 the City Council passed Ordinance No. 11323 C.M.S. rescinding 
Ordinance No. 9969 and establishing the Cultural Affairs Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Public Art Advisory Committee has operated independently of the Cultural 
Affairs Commission, taking on some of the responsibilities of the Cultural Affairs Commission 
outlined in the Percent for Art Ordinance during the Commission’s hiatus; and

WHEREAS, staff is introducing companion legislation in order to redefine the duties, 
membership, and quorum of the Cultural Affairs Commission, and to elevate the Public Art 
Advisory Committee from a “subcommittee” of the Cultural Affairs Commission to an 
independent committee; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the City Council formally establish the Public Art Advisory



Committee as an independent City Committee advising the Mayor, City Council, and the City 
Administrator on matters pertaining to the public art program and public art funded by the City or 
located on City property and in the public right of way, including on property owned by other 
public agencies such as Caltrans and Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART); and

WHEREAS, staff recommends, consistent with national best practices, that the bodies have one 
member in common to ensure that the members of each body understand and respect the 
advisory process of the other and the Public Art Advisory Committee and the Cultural Affairs 
Commission can function harmoniously;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAKLAND DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Oakland hereby determines that the preceding 
recitals are true and correct and hereby adopts and incorporates them into this ordinance.

SECTION 2. Ordinance No. 11086 C.M.S. is hereby amended and restated to add, delete or 
modify sections as set forth below; additions are indicated by double underscoring and 
deletions are indicated by strike through type.

SECTION 3. PURPOSE

The City of Oakland accepts responsibility for expanding the opportunities for its citizens to 
experience public art and other projects resulting from the creative expression of its visual artists 
in public places throughout the City. The City further recognizes the substantial economic benefits 
to be gained through aesthetic enhancement of its public spaces and consequent retail activity 
throughout the City. A policy is hereby established to direct the inclusion of works of art in public 
spaces throughout the City and/or the design services of artists in certain City capital improvement 
projects.

SECTION 4. DEFINITIONS

CITY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT means any capital improvement project 
paid for wholly or in part by funds appropriated by the City of Oakland to construct or 
remodel a building, decorative or commemorative structure, park, street, sidewalk, 
parking facility, or utility or any potion thereof, within the City limits of, or under the 
jurisdiction of, the City of Oakland.

A.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COSTS include all construction costs as well as architectural 
and engineering fees and site work associated with capital improvement projects. 
Capital improvement costs do not include administrative costs or costs related to the 
investigation and remediation of hazardous materials.

B.

C. PUBLIC ART is a process which results in the incorporation of original works of art by 
visual artists in public spaces and which involves the public from selection process to 
dedication; serves a socio-environmental function identifiable with people; is accessible 
to the mind and the eye; is integral to the site and responds to the concept of place 
making; is integrated with the work of other design professionals, is of highest quality; 
serves the City by enhancing the quality of life for citizens and contributes to the City’s 
prestige; and is unique to its moment in time and place.

D. PUBLIC ART PROJECTS are projects which involve visual artists working through the
2



public art process that result in the creation of original works in public spaces that 
include but are not limited to paintings, mural decorations, inscriptions, stained glass, 
fiber work, statues, reliefs or other sculpture, monuments, fountains, arches, or other 
structures intended for ornament or commemoration, carvings, frescoes, mosaics, 
mobiles, photographs, drawings, collages, prints, crafts both decorative and utilitarian in 
clay, fiber, wood, metal, glass, plastics and other materials. Works of art may be 
temporary as well as permanent. Public Art projects also include artists serving on 
design and development teams to identify opportunities to incorporate art in the public 
space.

E. PUBLIC ART PROJECTS PLAN means prioritized list of visual arts projects to be 
undertaken in any given year with budgets and recommended site and design 
approach, developed by the Cultural Arts Affairs Division in conjunction with the Public 
Art Advisory Committee of the Oakland Arts Council and in consultation with City 
departments anticipating capital projects, to be approved by the City Council.

PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE means a professionally qualified citizen 
committee established pursuant to section 601 of the City Charter recommended by the 
Qakland-Arts-Gouncil with members appointed bv the Mayor and approved by City 
Council to oversee quality control of the public art program, its projects, and to 
recommend to the Cultural Arts Affairs Division the sites, scope of project, artworks and 
artists for the public art projects.

F.

DEMOLITION COSTS means payment for any work needed for the removal of 
buildings or other existing structures from City property.

G.

EQUIPMENT COSTS means payments for any equipment or furnishing that are 
portable and of standard manufacture; it shall not mean items that are custom designed 
for, or that create new use for, a facility, whether portable or affixed.

H.

I. PUBLIC ART PROJECT ACCOUNT IN THE CULTURE ARTS DIVISION BUDGET 
means a project account in the Cultural Affairs Division budget, which is established by 
the City to receive monies (the 1.5%) appropriated from the capital improvement project 
budgets, funds contributed to the City in compliance with the Master Fee Schedule and 
Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 15.78. Public Art Requirements for Private 
Development (Ordinance No. 13491 C.M.S.L and private contributions to the public art 
program.

J. REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION COSTS means payments made for the purchase of 
parcels of land, existing buildings or structures, and costs incurred by the City for 
appraisals or negotiations in connection with such purchases.

K. CULTURAL AFFAIRS DIVISION means the Division of the City that oversees the
programs related to the arts and cultural development of the community, or as
otherwise defined bv the City Administrator.

SECTION 5. FUNDING

A. APPROPRIATIONS TO PUBLIC ART PROJECT ACCOUNT All appropriations for 
City capital improvement projects, including all bond projects and all other capital 
projects funded from other sources excluding sewer repairs funded from sewer service 
charge fees shall include an amount equal to one-and-one-half percent (1.5%) of the 
total capital improvement project cost to be dedicated to the Public Art Project Account. 
Funds appropriated will be used for design services of artists, for the selection,

3



acquisition, purchase, commissioning, installation, examination and/or display of 
original artworks, for the maintenance of artworks, for educating the public about the 
artwork and the Cultural Arts Affairs Division administrative costs to manage the 
program.

The 444% 1.5% appropriation shall include but not be limited to General Fund funded 
capital improvements, gas tax funded capital improvements, Measure B bond funded 
capital improvements when allowed bv law, off street parking funded capital 
improvements and any and all other capital improvements funded from other revenues 
including grants which may be so appropriated.

Funds so appropriated pursuant to this section, if not expended in anv given fiscal year, 
shall be carried forward to the next fiscal year.

METHOD OF CALCULATION. The minimum amount to be appropriated to the Public 
Art Project Account to fund artists’ services and/or artworks, maintenance, 
administration, and education shall be the total capital project appropriation including all 
construction costs as well as architectural and engineering fees and site work expenses 
multiplied by 0.015, excluding amounts budgeted for real property acquisition; 
demolition; and financing costs.

B.

C. POOLING. Funds appropriated as part of any one project, but not deemed necessary 
or appropriate in total or in part for public art at said project site, by the Cultural Arts 
Affairs Division in consultation with the Public Art Advisory Committee and the capital 
improvement project manager, may be expended on other projects approved under the 
Public Art Project Plan when such funds are eligible to be so used.

EXCLUSIONS. If the source of funding or other applicable law or regulation with 
respect to any particular capital improvement project or portion thereof prohibits or 
restricts the use of the 1.5% dedication of such funds for public art, this ordinance shall 
not apply to the project expenses, so prohibited or restricted.

D.

GRANT APPLICATIONS. All City departments shall, from the effective date of this 
ordinance, include in applications for capital improvement projects to outside granting 
authorities, amounts for artists’ services and/or artworks as specified herein, where 
permitted or unless otherwise waived by the City Council. Receipt of such funds shall 
be administered as part of the City’s Public Art Program.

E.

EL WAIVER. The City Manager Administrator mav request that the City Council exclude 
certain capital improvement projects from the provisions of this ordinance by the 
passage of a resolution authorizing such a waiver.

SECTION 6. USE OF FUNDS

It is intended that funds in the Public Art Project Account will be appropriated in the annual 
budget to obtain and install visual art in public places, to maintain and refurbish visual art in 
public places when the cost of such maintenance exceeds funds currently available for the 
maintenance of public property in general, to fund staff time in the Cultural Arts Affairs Division 
necessary to administer the public art program, and to defray such other expenses which are, or 
may become, an integral part of the public art program including programs to educate the public 
about the public art.

4



A. ELIGIBLE COSTS. Monies appropriated under this ordinance may be used for hiring 
artists to develop design concepts and for the selection, acquisition, purchase, 
commissioning, placement, installation, exhibition, and/or display of artworks. Artworks 
may be permanent or temporary and integral to the architecture. Integration of the 
artists’ design concepts and/or the artworks into the project architecture should be 
insured insofar as feasible, by concurrent selection of the artist(s) with the architect or 
designer. All of the above are considered eligible expenses for the Public Art Program 
artists fees. Artist fees for such projects can include the following:

T Structures which enable the display of artwork(s).

2, Artistic design and fabrication fees.

(L Labor of assistants, materials and contracted services required for the production 
and installation of the work of art.

4 Any required permit or certificate fees, business and legal costs directly related to
the project.

£L Dealer’s fees, if necessary and where appropriate. CAQ-The Cultural Affairs 
Division, in concurrence with the National Endowment for the Arts and several other 
arts agencies around the country, recommends that no more than 10% of the artist’s 
fee be paid as a dealer/gallery commission.

Communication and other indirect costs (insurance, utilities). Transportation of 
the work of art to the site.
£L

~L Preparation of site to receive artwork.

8, Installation of the completed work of art.

9, Administrative fees can include the following:

10. Cultural Arts Affairs Division’s administration costs incurred in the process of 
administering the Public Art Program including staff time, direct costs and 
administrative overhead.

11. Documentation, (color slides and black and-white photoaraohsl printed and 
digital, of the artwork’s fabrication and installation and plaques to identify the artwork.

B. INELIGIBLE COSTS. Monies appropriated under this ordinance may not be used for 
the following:

Directional elements such as supergraphics, signage, or color coding except where 
these elements are integral parts of the original work of art or executed by artists in 
unique or limited editions.

“Art objects” which are mass produced of standard design such as playground 
equipment or fountains.

Reproduction, by mechanical or other means, or original works of art, except in cases 
of film, video, photography, printmaking or other media arts.

Decorative or functional elements which are designed by the building architect as

5



opposed to an artist commissioned for this purpose.

Landscape architecture and landscape gardening except where these elements are 
designed by the artist and are an integral part of the work of art by the artist.

SECTION 7. PUBLIC ART PROJECT ACCOUNT

Monies appropriated pursuant to this ordinance shall be transferred by the City Manger 
Administrator or his designee to the project account within the Cultural Arts Affairs Division 
designated “Public Art Project Account” into which monies appropriated hereof shall be 
deposited. Funds so appropriated, if not expended in any given Fiscal Year shall be carried over 
to the next Fiscal Year. Funds appropriated from sources placing time restrictions on 
expenditure of such finds shall be expended according to such restrictions or be forfeited, 
unless an extension is granted.

SECTION 8. ANNUAL PUBLIC ART PROJECTS PLAN

The Git-y-s-Cultural Arts Affairs Division (CAD) staff in consultation with appropriate City capital 
project staff and the Public Art Advisory Committee shall regularly review all new and projected 
capital improvement project allocations from the general fund, City bond funds, grants and other 
sources at least once a year as new projects are implemented. A Public Art Project Plan, 
including project descriptions, budgets, locations and recommended design approaches, will be 
submitted by staff for review to the Public Art Advisory Committee and in turn to the City Council 
for approval and implementation.

SECTION 9. PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Section 601 of the Charter of the City of Oakland, the City Council hereby 
establishes the Public Art Advisory Committee (the “Committee'’^ As further described herein, it
shall be the duty of the Committee to provide advice and recommendations to the City Council. 
City Administrator, and Cultural Affairs division related to public art funded bv the Citv. and 
public art placed on City property and in the public right of wav, including on property owned bv 
other public agencies. The Committee shall advise on matters such as proposed sites, scope of
project, artworks, and artists

SECTION 10. PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP, APPOINTMENT, 
AND VACANCIES

A. MEMBERSHIP. The Committee shall be composed of nine (9) members. Members shall be 
appointed bv the Mayor and confirmed bv the Citv Council pursuant to Section 601 of the Citv 
Charter. Members shall serve without compensation.

B. QUORUM. A quorum for the conduct of Committee meetings shall be four M members. Anv 
action bv the Committee shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the members
present at the meeting

C. TERMS

1. Length of Terms. Terms shall be for a period of three (3^ years. All terms shall
commence on the date following the expiration of the prior term. An appointment to fill a 
vacancy created bv the premature departure of a Committee member shall be for the 
unexoired portion of the departed Committee member’s term only.

6



2. Limit on Consecutive Terms. No person shall be appointed to serve more than two (21 
consecutive terms as a member of the Public Art Advisory Committee.

3. Holdover. In the event an appointment to fill a vacancy has not occurred bv the 
conclusion of a Committee member’s term, that member mav continue to serve as a 
member of the Committee in a holdover capacity for a period not to exceed one year, to 
allow for the appointment of a new Committee member. Pursuant to Section 1 Q.C. 1. 
above, the newly appointed Committee member’s term shall commence on the date 
following the expiration of the prior three-vear term notwithstanding anv holdover period.

D. REMOVAL. A member of the Committee mav be removed for cause pursuant to Section 601 
of the Charter. Among other things, conviction of a felony, misconduct, incomoetencv. 
inattention to or inability to perform duties, or absence from three (3) consecutive regular 
meetings except on account of illness or when absent at the approval of the Public Art 
Advisory Committee, mav constitute cause for removal. To assure participation of Committee 
members, attendance bvthe members of the Committee to all regularly scheduled and special
meetings of the Committee shall be recorded

E. VACANCIES. A vacancy on the Committee shall exist whenever a member reaches the term 
limit, including any holdover period, dies, resigns, or is removed.

SECTION 11. RESPONSIBILITIES

A. The Oakland City Council shall:

1. Appropriate funds annually to the Public Art Project Account from the 1 1/2% of 
the capital improvement projects for the Oakland Public Art Program.

o Approve appointments to the Public Art Advisory Committee.

3r2. Review and adopt annual Public Art Project Plans.

4r Approve contracts over-$15,000 with selected artists.

B. The Oakland Arts Council shall:

•4-r ■Recommend to the City Council persons to serve on- Public Art Advisory 
Committee striving toward ethnic/gender balance.

O Be responsible for recommending guidelines for implementation of the Oakland 
Public Art Program.

3r Submit the Annual Public Art Projects Plan based on the Cultural Arts Division 
staff and Public Art Advisory Committee recommendations to the City Council.

Recommend an annual-maintenance program based on staff and Public Art 
Advisory-Committee’s recommendations

At

Appoint the artist-selection juries based on the PubliG Art Advisory Committee’s 
recommendations.

Recommend acceptance of proposed gifts, exhibitions, and loans based on the 
Public Art Advisory Committee’s review.

7



-Create a nine-member Public Art Advisory-Committee,-approved by the City 
Council, whieh-will-serve-as a subcommittee of the Oakland Arts Council and be 
responsible-for-advising the City regarding its public art program. The Oakland 
Arts Council shall develop-the-nomination procedures to recruit members.

Tv

G43. The Cultural Arts Affairs Division (CAD) shall:

1. Be responsible for the administration of the Public Art Program.

Hire the Public Art Coordinator. Public Arts-Advisory Committee members-may 
be asked to serve as part of the interview panel.

Zg. Provide staff support for the management and implementation of annual Public 
Arts Projects Plan.

42. Develop with the Public Art Advisory Committee, an annual Public Art Projects 
Plan, Art Maintenance Survey and Work Plan.

§4 Develop and submit annual budgets, administer budget and contracts, oversee 
the jury process, implement program policies and guidelines working with Public 
Art Advisory Committee and Qakland Arts Council Cultural Affairs Commission.

§5. Coordinate the artists recruitment, jury-selection and review process, and 
community information-education sessions.

T§. Serve as liaison between the Oakland Arts Council Cultural Affairs Commission. 
Public Art Advisory Committee, City Managers’ Administrator’s Office, other e£ity 
departments and City Council.

Zl. Seek additional grant funds from foundations, corporations, individuals and public 
agencies such as the National Endowment-fer-the-Arts-(NTE-.A.) and California 
Arts Council, for public art projects.

9§. Draft new policies and programs-as-requested by the Oakland Arts Council and 
Public Art Advisory Committee. Refine policies and programs related to the 
Public Art Program.

O—The-Gity Agencies collaborating on the Public Art projests-shallT

Determine in consultation with Cultural Arts Division staff and the Public Art 
Advisory Committee, whether a project is to be developed by a design team 
and/or if public art is appropriate at the capital improvement project site.

10. Review annual maintenance needs survey of the public art collection in
consultation with Cultural Arts-Division staff and Public Art Advisory Committee to 
determine a work plan.

&•£. The Public Art Advisory Committee shall:

1. Advise the City in matters pertaining to the quality, quantity, scope, and style of 
art in public places.

Advise the City regarding the amounts to be expended on art in public places;2.

8



Advise and assist the GAD Cultural Affairs Division in obtaining financial 
assistance for art in public places from private, corporate, and governmental 
sources;

3.

Review plans for the installation of art in public places;4.

Recommend the retention of consultants, consistent with City’s consultant 
selection procedures, to assist the City and the visual arts jury in making 
decisions concerning the art in public places program;

5.

6. Advise and assist private property owners who desire such advice and 
assistance regarding the selection and installation of works of art to be located 
on their property in the public view;

Act as a liaison between local artists and private property owners desiring to 
install works of art on their private property in the public view; and

7.

8. Maintain and promote an inventory of meritorious works of art in the public view.

9. Recommend guidelines for implementation of the Public Art Program

10. Advise Cultural Affairs Division on the Public Art Projects Plan to be submitted to
the City Council

11. Make recommendations to the Cultural Affairs Division on an annual
maintenance program for artwork in the Civic Art Collection

12. Recommend appointments to the artist-selection iwiesoanels

13. After review, recommend acceptance of proposed gifts, exhibitions, and loans

F. Artist-Selection Juries shall:

Be comprised of a minimum three-persons from the following categories:

Voting Members3tr

4} One representative frem-the-neighborhood in which the artwork 
or artplace will occur.

2} Two artists, or one artist and one arts professional (designer, 
curator, collector, etc.)

Non-Voting Advisors

The design architect, if selected at this point.

2} The-project manager from the City agenGy-collaborating on-the 
project.

3} Other design-team-members, if selected at this point.

A member of the Public Art Advisory Committee.4}

9



Be chaired by a Public Art Advisory Committee member.

3r Meet in open-session-.

At Review credentials, proposals and/or materials submitted- by artists -

%r Recommend-to-the Public Art Advisory Committee, an artist or artists to be 
commissioned for the project or an artist whose existing work is to be purchased 
for the project.

B. The Artist(s) shall:

At Submit credentials, proposals,-and/or materials as directed for considerations by 
the artist- selection panel.

■If selected, execute and complete the work, or transfer title of an existing work, 
in a timely and professional manner.

Zt AA/erk closely with the project manager and/or other design-professi o n a I s-on 
commissioned-project.

Submit to the Public Art-Advisory Committee-for review and approval, prior to 
preliminary-design approval by the project’s City agency, any significant change 
in the scope of the project-color, material, design, or siting of the work.

At

&T Be responsible for all phases of-the-project as stipulated in the GentraetT

Participate in appropriate forums in the community where the artwork will be 
placed or the project will occur.

&r

SECTION 12. STANDARDS FOR REVIEW

In performing its duties with respect to the public arts Public Art program, the Public Art Advisory 
Committee and artist selection juries shall give special attention to the following matters:

1. Conceptual compatibility of the design with the immediate environment of the 
site;

2. Appropriateness of the design to the function of the site;

Compatibility of the design and location within a unified design character or 
historical character of the site;

3.

Creation of an internal sense of order and a desirable environment for the 
general community by the design and location of the work of art;

4.

Preservation and integration of natural features with the project;5.

6. Appropriateness of the materials, textures, colors, and design to the expression 
of the design concept;

Representation of a broad variety of tastes within the community and the 
provision of a balanced inventory of art in public places to insure a variety of 
style, design, and media throughout the community that will be representative of

7.

10



the eclectic tastes of the community;

8. Strive to reach the City’s goals for the awarding of professional service contracts 
with respect to minority participation and Oakland residency.

SECTION 13. IMPLEMENTATION OF POLICIES FOR PUBLIC ART PROJECTS

Implementation of The City Administrator is hereby authorized to adopt Policies and Procedures 
consistent with this Ordinance for the administration of the Public Art Program and to take other 
steps as needed to implement this Public Art Program shall be accomplished in aGoordanse-with 
procedures to be established by resolution of the City as recommended by-the Oakland Arts 
Geufieil.

SECTION 14. OWNERSHIP

All art objects acquired pursuant to this ordinance shall be acquired in the name of the City of 
Oakland and title shall vest in the City of Oakland.

SECTION 15. SEVERABILITY

Should any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such declaration shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

mi 1 6 2019IN COUNCIL, OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA,

PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:

AYES - FORTUNATO BAS, GALLO, GIBSON MCELHANEY, KALB, REID, TAYLOR, THAO AND 
PRESIDENT KAPLAN

NOES- 

ABSENT- 

ABSTENTION -

0

ATTEST:
LATONDA SIMK/ION 

City Clerk and Clerk of the Council of the City of 
Oakland, California

Introduction Date Date of Attestation:

Ml - 9 2019

ii



NOTICE AND DIGEST

ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RESTATING THE PERCENT FOR 
PUBLIC ART ORDINANCE NO. 11086 C.M.S. TO CLARIFY THE DUTIES 
OF THE PUBLIC ART ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND ITS 
RELATIONSHIP TO THE CULTURAL AFFAIRS COMMISSION, 
FORMERLY KNOW AS THE OAKLAND ARTS COUNCIL

This Ordinance would amend and restate Ordinance No.11086 C.M.S. to make various 
changes to the Public Art Advisory Committee and the Cultural Affairs Commission, formerly 
known as the Oakland Arts Council, including to define the duties of the Public Art Advisory 
Committee, clarify that Committee membership is no longer recommended by the Cultural 
Affairs Commission, and establish that the Committee would no longer operate as a 
subcommittee of the Cultural Affairs Commission.


	PAAC Minutes 8-7-19draft
	PAAC Agenda 10-7-19
	PAAC 10-7-19 Item IV. Pro Arts @the commons Desperate Holdings. C. Thornton
	PAAC 10.7.19 Item V. Public Art Ordinance 13562 CMS

